
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU'R CABINET 
 

2.00 PM DYDD GWENER, 10 MAWRTH 2023 
 

CYFARFOD AML-LEOLIAD - SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, TIMAU PORT 
TALBOT A MICROSOFT 

 

 
Rhaid gosod pob ffôn symudol ar y modd distaw ar gyfer parhad y 

cyfarfod 
 

Rhan 1 
 

1.  Penderfynu arfer y pwerau a nodir yn Adran 35 o Ddeddf Llesiant 
Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 sef y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a 
Chraffu dynodedig at y diben hwn fel y’i cymeradwywyd gan y 
Cyngor Mai 2015.   
 

2.  Cyhoeddiad y Cadeirydd   
 

3.  Datganiadau o fuddiannau   
 

4.  Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus - Cynllun Llesiant Drafft 2023-
2028  (Tudalennau 3 - 48) 
 

5.  Eitemau brys   
(Unrhyw eitemau brys (boed yn gyhoeddus neu wedi’u heithrio) yn 
ol disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag Adran 100B (4) (b) o Ddeddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 1972) 
 

 
K.Jones 

Prif Weithredwr 
 
Canolfan Ddinesig 
Port Talbot Dydd Llun, 6 Mawrth 2023 
 



 
 
Aelodaeth y Pwyllgor:  
 
Cadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd P.Rogers 

 
Is-gadeirydd: 
 

C.James 
 

Cynghorwyr: 
 

T.Bowen, C.Clement-Williams, C.Galsworthy, 
J.Henton, J.Jones, R.G.Jones, S.Paddison, 
C.Phillips, R.Phillips, S.Pursey, S.H.Reynolds, 
A.J.Richards a/ac M.Spooner 
 

 
 
Nodiadau:  
 
(1) Os yw aelodau'r pwyllgor neu'r rhai nad ydynt yn aelodau'r pwyllgor 

am gynnig eitemau perthnasol i'w cynnwys ar yr agenda cyn 
cyfarfodydd y dyfodol, rhaid iddynt roi gwybod i'r Prif 
Weithredwr/Cadeirydd 8 niwrnod cyn y cyfarfod.  

 
(2) Os yw'r rhai nad ydynt yn aelodau'r pwyllgor am fod yn bresennol ar 

gyfer eitem o ddiddordeb, mae'n rhaid rhoi rhybudd ymlaen llaw 
(erbyn 12 hanner dydd ar y diwrnod cyn y cyfarfod).  Gall y rhai nad 
ydynt yn aelodau'r pwyllgor siarad ond nid oes ganddynt hawl i 
bleidleisio, cynnig nac eilio unrhyw gynnig. 

 
(3) Fel arfer, ar gyfer trefniadau cyn craffu, bydd y Cadeirydd yn argymell 

eitemau gweithredol sydd ar ddod i'w trafod/herio.  Mae hefyd yn 
agored i aelodau'r pwyllgor ofyn i eitemau gael eu trafod - er y 
gofynnir i'r aelodau ddewis a dethol yma o ran materion pwysig. 

 
(4) Gwahoddir aelodau perthnasol Bwrdd y Cabinet hefyd i fod yn 

bresennol yn y cyfarfod at ddibenion Craffu/Ymgynghori. 
 
(5) Gofynnir i aelodau'r Pwyllgor Craffu ddod â'u papurau ar gyfer Bwrdd 

y Cabinet i'r cyfarfod. 
 
 



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

CABINET SCRUINTY COMMITTEE 
 

10TH MARCH 2023 
 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PEOPLE AND  
ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

 
S REES 

 
 

Matter for: Decision   
 
Wards Affected:  All Wards 
 
Report Title – Public Services Board - Draft Well-being Plan 2023-2028 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. To provide the Cabinet Scrutiny Committee with the opportunity to review 

and comment on the Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board draft Well-
being Plan as statutory consultee (as listed under Section 43 (1) of the 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015). 

 
Background 

2. The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on 

local authorities, health boards, fire and rescue services and National 

Resources Wales to establish a Public Services Board (PSB) in each local 

authority area to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural 

well-being of its area. The Neath Port Talbot PSB was established in 2016. 

The PSB is made up of the following membership: 

Statutory partners: 

 Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Authority 

 National Resources Wales 

 Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council 

 Swansea Bay University Health Board 

 

Tudalen3

Eitem yr Agenda4



 

Invited participants/ other partners: 

  Coastal Housing     Tai Tarian 

  Town and Community Councils  Pobl 

 Department of Work and Pensions  Police & Crime Commissioner 

  National Probation Service   Public Health Wales 

  NPTC Group of Colleges   South Wales Police 

  NPT Council for Voluntary Service Swansea University 

  Welsh Government 

 

Improving Well-Being 

3. In order to improve the well-being of its area, the Act places a duty on 

PSB’s to undertake a well-being assessment to assess the state of well-

being locally. 

The Neath Port Talbot PSB’s first well-being assessment was completed in 

2017 and informed the focus of the work contained in the PSB’s first Well-

being Plan 2018 – 2023 “The Neath Port Talbot We Want”. 

The PSB’s second well-being assessment (attached at Appendix 1) was 

completed in 2022 and the findings have been used to inform the PSB’s 

draft Well-being Plan (attached at Appendix 2) which sets out the PSB’s 

vision for the area, its local well-being objectives along with the priorities 

(steps) for action over the next 5 years.  

In preparing its second Plan, the PSB reflected on the findings of the 

Wellbeing Assessment and agreed to adopt the Council’s four well-being 

objectives as a framework.  

The well-being objectives and proposed priorities (steps) for action in the 

draft Well-being Plan are outlined below: 

 

Well-being Objective - All children will have the best start in life 

 

Steps:  

 Take a co-ordinated approach to supporting the mental health 

and well-being of our children and young people so they are able 

to flourish and thrive. 

 Ensure that when our youngest children start school they are 

confident and ready to learn.  

Tudalen4



 

 Ensure better access to and alignment of early intervention 

services in order to meet the needs of our children, young people 

and their families.  

 Develop appropriate academic and vocational pathways for 

young people to ensure all our school leavers have access to 

education, employment or training opportunities. 

 

 

Well-being Objective - All our communities are thriving and sustainable 

 Steps:  

 Make sure those who need help and support with the cost of living 

know what support is available and how to access it.  

 Identify gaps in help and support and how those gaps could be 

addressed.  

 Revisit the work undertaken with the support of the Bevan 

Foundation prior to the pandemic and reset the strategic 

objectives and actions to address the root causes of poverty now. 

  

Well-being Objective - Our local environment, culture and heritage can be 

enjoyed by future generations 

Steps:  

 Take collaborative action to tackle the climate emergency 

(adaptation and mitigation).  

 Encourage engagement and participation in cultural activities and 

the celebration and preservation of our cultural assets.  

 Encourage a regenerative local economy where the impacts of 

production and consumption are reduced.  

 Take collaborative action to tackle the nature crisis and improve 

the health of our ecosystems.  

  

Tudalen5



 

 

 

Well-being Objective - There are more secure, green and well paid jobs 

and that skills across the area are improved 

 

Steps:  

 Develop Circular and Foundational economies and promote local 

people and businesses to spend more money in NPT.  

 Increase the number of apprenticeship, traineeship and work 

placement opportunities in the local area and support more 

people to access them.  

 Support more people to achieve the necessary level qualifications 

linked to the skills that local employers need now and in the 

future.  

 Ensure local businesses, local people and communities have 

maximum benefit from external major investment for the area both 

existing and planned.  

 

Consultation & Approval 

 

4. The Draft Well-being Plan is currently subject to a 12 week consultation 

period (22nd December 2022 – 15 March 2023).  

 

The final draft Plan will be presented to the PSB on 28th March and then 

presented to Council on 26th April for approval. Approval is required at all 

statutory partner boards.  

The final Well-being Plan will be published by 5th May 2023 to meet the 

statutory deadline. 

 
Financial Appraisal  
 
5. To be determined when the final Well-being Plan is approved. 
 
 
Integrated Impact Assessment  
 
6. An Integrated Impact Assessment is not required for the content of this 

report. 

  

Tudalen6



 

 
Valleys Communities Impact 
 
7. The proposed priorities (steps) in the draft Well-being Plan are planned 

across Neath Port Talbot communities. 
 
Workforce Impact 
 
8. To be determined when the final Well-being Plan is approved. 
 
Legal Impact 
 
9. To meet the statutory requirements contained within Section 43 (1) and (2) 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015). 
 
Risk Management 
 
10. Failure to approve and publish the Well-being Plan could potentially lead 

to the Future Generations Commissioner exercising powers to conduct a 
review into the extent to which the PSB (where the Leader and Chief 
Executive are members) are meeting duties under the Act which could 
lead to action also by Welsh ministers. This could impact on the Council’s 
reputation and also lead to additional resources being required to meet 
the duties. 

 
 
Consultation 
 
11. The draft Well-being Plan is currently being consulted on for a 12 week 

period. 
 
Recommendation 
 
12. It is recommended that the Cabinet Scrutiny Committee: 
 

 Note the Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board draft Well-being Plan 
as statutory consultee (as listed under Section 43 (1) of the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015) and provide comments/feedback 
as appropriate. 

  

Tudalen7



 

 
Appendices 
 
13. Appendix 1 – Summary of Well-being Assessment 2022 

 
 Appendix 2 – Draft Well-being Plan 2023-2028 
  
 
 
Officer Contact: 
 
Vanessa Dale, Public Services Board Co-ordinator 

Email: v.dale@npt.gov.ukl 

 

Caryn Furlow-Harris, Strategic Manager – Policy & Executive Support 

Email: c.furlow@npt.gov.uk  

 

Tudalen8

mailto:v.dale@npt.gov.ukl
mailto:c.furlow@npt.gov.uk


SUMMARY DOCUMENT

W E L L-B E I N G A S S ES S M E N T
N E AT H  P O R T  TA L B O T  P U B L I C  S E R V I C E S  B O A R D

W E L L-B E I N G A S S ES S M E N T

Tudalen9



CONTENTS
INTRODUCTION	 3
INTRODUCTION		

				      									         1

SUMMARY OF CONSIDERATIONS FOR NEATH PORT TALBOT  						      2

A PROSPEROUS WALES											            5

A RESILIENT WALES											            7

A HEALTHIER WALES											            8

A MORE EQUAL WALES											           10

A WALES OF COHESIVE COMMUNITIES									         11

A WALES OF VIBRANT CULTURE AND THRIVING WELSH COMMUNITIES					     12

A GLOBALLY RESPONSIBLE WALES									         14

PUBLIC PERCEPTIONS OF CHANGE – “LET’S TALK” RESPONSE 						      15

CHANGES EXPERIENCED											          17

PUBLIC PERCEPTIONS OF PRIORITIES GOING FORWARD							       18

Tudalen10



1

INTRODUCTION

This summary chapter synthesises and draws insight from the findings 
reported in the four Neath Port Talbot (NPT) Well-being pillar chapters: 

SOCIALENVIRONMENTALECONOMIC CULTURAL

This chapter considers the key issues and progress achieved since the previous 
Well-being Assessment, and feedback provided in the “Let’s Talk” campaign through 
a retrospective and prospective lens. The information is presented in the context of 
the Seven Well-being Goals, and should be read alongside the four Well-being 
pillar chapters. 

Since the first Well-being Assessment in 2017, positive progress has been made to 
improve NPT well-being outcomes. This improvement has been achieved in spite 
of budget cuts and austerity actions, the COVID-19 pandemic and the continued 
challenges posed by environmental threats. The importance of protecting the 
natural environment is a high priority, with the Welsh Government officially 
declaring a Climate Emergency in 2019 and a Nature Emergency in 2021. This 
two-fold emergency highlights the significance of the interrelated challenges and 
the urgency needed in tackling them. It is essential that the social and natural 
environment are viewed together to achieve sustainable development.

Tudalen11

http://nptwellbeing.wales/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Social-NPT.pdf
http://nptwellbeing.wales/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Social-NPT.pdf
http://nptwellbeing.wales/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Environment-NPT.pdf
http://nptwellbeing.wales/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Environment-NPT.pdf
http://nptwellbeing.wales/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Economic-NPT.pdf
http://nptwellbeing.wales/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Economic-NPT.pdf
http://nptwellbeing.wales/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Cultural-NPT.pdf
http://nptwellbeing.wales/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Cultural-NPT.pdf


2

SUMMARY OF CONSIDERATIONS FOR NEATH PORT TALBOT  

A PROSPEROUS WALES

	z GREEN ECONOMY: NPT remains one of the most important manufacturing locations in the UK 
with largest steel production complex at Port Talbot. Decarbonising important economic assets 
such as this to achieve the Welsh Government’s Net Zero target are a significant challenge. While 
carbon emissions have reduced in NPT over the last decade, it is below the national average. 
However, there are promising opportunities for future growth linked to decarbonisation such as 
through Associated British Port’s vision for Port Talbot Docks as a globally significant offshore wind 
turbine production hub.

	z SKILLED WORKFORCE: Occupations remain lower skilled compared to the UK average. We need 
to work together to upskill our workforce to meet the long-term demand for jobs in the area.

	z PANDEMIC RECOVERY: Employment is recovering following the pandemic, but support is needed 
around recruitment for growing sectors. The pandemic has given us an opportunity to rethink the 
way we do things and build back better in a green and just way that addresses both the climate 
and nature emergencies.

	z CHILDCARE: Costs can be a barrier to employment.  We need to increase uptake of entitlements 
and support the development of this sector.

A RESILIENT WALES

	z NATURAL RESOURCE LIMITS: We are using stocks of our natural resources at a rate which is 
unsustainable and that our ecosystems are under increasing pressure and threat from the impacts 
of climate change, land use change, invasive non-native species (INNS), pollution and over-use. 

	z ECOSYSTEMS: Many of our ecosystems are not resilient to unexpected or unforeseen change. 
This jeopardises the ability of our natural environment to provide a number of vital well-being 
benefits now and in the future.

	z NATURE-BASED RECOVERY: A changing climate will likely impact on the condition and 
distribution of habitats and species, and degraded habitats contribute to climate change. However, 
by putting nature into recovery we can also tackle climate change.

	z NATURAL ASSETS: Residents appreciate and value the natural assets in NPT, but more is required 
to improve and recover them over the long-term.

	z FLOODING AND COASTAL CHANGE: Flooding and coastal change risks to homes, communities, 
businesses, infrastructure, and ecosystems are one of the top concerns of climate change in NPT.

Tudalen12



3

A HEALTHIER WALES

	z CHANGING POPULATION: There is an ongoing increase in the older population, also in single 
person households, which is likely to be a factor in increased loneliness and isolation. The gap in 
life expectancy and healthy life expectancy also indicates increased pressure on health and social 
services.

	z HEALTHY PLACES: In comparison to Wales, NPT has one of the least healthy diets and lowest 
levels of physical activity.  Work is needed to reverse the growing trend of obesity and more can 
be done to make sure the places we live help us to be active and eat well.

	z MENTAL WELL-BEING: Residents of NPT reported comparatively positive mental well-being in 
the National Survey for Wales. However, we need to be prepared for an increase in low mental 
well-being and mental health conditions as the true impacts of the pandemic surface.

	z HOUSING: We need more affordable housing in NPT, with 1,037 new homes required by 2033. 
Encouragingly, 434 new units were built between 2018 and 2021.

	z AIR QUALITY: While there has been improvement in air quality across NPT in the last decade, it 
still remains an area of concern and is a key priority in order to improve the health of current and 
future generations.

A MORE EQUAL WALES

	z DEPRIVATION AND POVERTY: High concentrations of deprivation and poverty remain in areas of 
NPT. These areas will be most impacted by the current increases in living costs.

	z HOUSEHOLD INCOME: Household income has fallen across Wales during the pandemic with 
people on low to mid incomes more likely to be affected.

	z COVID-19 IMPACT: Covid-19 has increased inequality in general in NPT and the worst affected 
groups include Black and Ethnic Minorities, women and young people.

	z EDUCATION: The pandemic appears to have increased inequalities in educational attainment and 
the full extent of this impact may not yet be evident.

	z ENVIRONMENTAL RISK: Those most vulnerable in society are at higher risk environmental risk 
such as poor air quality and flooding. Climate change is expected to exacerbate these inequalities 
and there is a risk that responses to climate change can place disproportionate burdens on 
vulnerable people and communities.

Tudalen13



4

A WALES OF COHESIVE COMMUNITIES

	z COMMUNITY SPIRIT: Communities have pulled together during the pandemic and residents 
have noted the increase in community spirit and support.  Communities should be supported to 
shape their own futures.

	z SAFE COMMUNITIES: NPT is generally considered to be a safe place to live.  There has been a 
reduction in anti-social behaviour and violence against women, although we have seen an upward 
trend in cyber-crime. NPT residents are concerned about drugs in the communities.

	z CONNECTED COMMUNITIES: Whilst the towns of Neath, Port Talbot and Pontardawe are well 
connected to each other and the rest of Wales, transport links in the valley areas are poor and 
contribute to the social and economic isolation of people living there.

	z CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE: Residents of NPT feel it is important for children and young 
people to have more places to go and things to do.

A WALES OF VIBRANT CULTURE AND THRIVING WELSH LANGUAGE

	z PROUD HERITAGE: People in NPT are proud of their heritage and traditional Welsh communities.  
We need to preserve and protect our culture, history and rich natural heritage, whilst keeping 
inclusivity in mind as our culture becomes more diverse and working to remove historical stigma 
associated with the area by promoting the area. 

	z WELSH LANGUAGE: Whilst the number of Welsh speakers has declined, learning and Welsh 
educational opportunities are increasing.  We need to provide more opportunity to use the Welsh 
language in NPT to increase residents' confidence. 

	z ARTS AND CULTURE: Underfunding of the arts and culture has had a negative impact on the offer 
over the years, which the pandemic has further impacted.  We know access to these things are an 
important factor to improving well-being.

	z VOLUNTEERING: With the increasing number of community assets (e.g. community centres, 
libraries and heritage sites) being run by volunteers relying on grant funding, we need to provide 
support to make this sustainable so that such assets are not lost.

Tudalen14



5

A GLOBALLY RESPONSIBLE WALES

	z RESOURCE USE AND DECARBONISATION: NPT uses 2.5 times per person more resources than 
the planet can sustain. Further, NPT is a major carbon contributor in Wales and faces a challenge 
to balance Net Zero goals against the economic benefits brought by its high energy/emission 
employers.

	z CLIMATE AND NATURE EMERGENCY: NPT is a leader in renewable energy with some of the 
highest installed renewable energy capacity in Wales. Current projects to restore adjacent habitats 
such as carbon-sequestering peatlands demonstrates ways in which multiple benefits can be 
derived to tackle both the Climate and Nature emergencies together.

	z FAMOUS PERSONALITIES: NPT has produced world famous actors, artists and sports 
personalities giving us a global identity, this can be further harnessed to promote the region. 

Tudalen15



6

An innovative, productive and low carbon society which recognises the limits of the global 
environment and therefore uses resources efficiently and proportionately (including 
acting on climate change); and which develops a skilled and well-educated population in 
an economy which generates wealth and provides employment opportunities, allowing 
people to take advantage of the wealth generated through securing decent work.

Encouraging improvements in NPT’s carbon emissions, waste and air quality have been made since 
the last assessment, yet further improvement remains a priority. In 2020-2021, residents of NPT 
produced just under 1% less waste per person than the national average (466kg vs 470kg). While air 
quality has significantly improved in NPT over the past 10 years, further progress is being made using 
new technology which will help to reduce death and other negative impacts attributed to poor air 
quality. In 2021, NPT council reported that the area was the first in Wales to implement the innovative 
approach of placing sensors on lampposts to obtain air quality intelligence.  

A PROSPEROUS WALES

Tudalen16



7

Reducing the environmental impact of production and consumption, and the carbon footprint from 
Wales and beyond, is central to achieving the goal of being a prosperous and globally responsible 
country. The target is for Wales to use no more than its fair share of global resources for the 
economy, to operate within the regenerative capacity of the Earth’s ecosystems and make a positive 
contribution to global well-being. Housing the largest UK-based steel production complex in its locale, 
NPT is one of the most important manufacturing locations in the UK. The steel industry sustains 
significant economic benefit to the area and while it provides an embedded cultural identity, its 
impact on climate change is irrefutable. NPT has the highest carbon intensity of any local authority 
in the UK and emits 53% of the industrial carbon in Wales. Subsequently residents in NPT produce 
over seven times as much carbon per capita compared to the national average even though emissions 
from transport and households are similar to other local authorities in Wales. While carbon emissions 
diminished by 9% between 2005 and 2019, it is below the UK average of 36%.

In 2018, NPT’s economy was estimated to be worth £2.6 billion, supporting around 56,000 jobs. 
Workforce qualifications (up to NVQ3 and NVQ4) remain below the national average but have showed 
an upward trajectory. Prior to the pandemic, employment rates increased 10% between 2014 and 
2019. Unfortunately, at the outset of the COVID-19 pandemic, unemployment rates increased by 
59% in spite of an effective furlough scheme. The increase in unemployment was 27% lower than the 
national average (86%) because of the lower exposure to service sectors such as hospitality. Since 
the reduction of COVID-19 restrictions, employment rates are recovering, with an 18% decrease 
in unemployment between March and August 2021. There is continued concern that continued 
rationalisation of jobs at Tata Steel would have a negative impact on employment levels and 
subsequently individual well-being across the local authority and further afield. Further, COVID-19 has 
created widening inequalities in education with poorer examination results across the local authority 
compared to less deprived areas. Further school closures, home schooling and reduced access and 
progression in further and higher education will also impact the workforce for some time to come. 

The COVID-19 pandemic has now given us an opportunity to rethink the way we do things and build 
back better in a green and just way that addresses both the climate and nature crises, along with 
other challenges facing our current and future generations NPT has a vibrant economic recovery plan 
to help “build back stronger” with greater resilience. The recovery plan aims to focus its efforts on the 
hardest hit places, communities and business sectors by targeting new opportunities, including a set 
of measures to achieve a greener economy.

Tudalen17



8

A RESILIENT WALES

A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural environment with healthy 
functioning ecosystems that support social, economic and ecological resilience and the 
capacity to adapt to change (for example climate change).

We are using our stocks of natural resources at a rate which is unsustainable and that our ecosystems 
are under increasing pressure and threat from the impacts of climate change, land use change, 
invasive non-native species (INNS), pollution and over-use. Many of our ecosystems are not resilient 
to unexpected or unforeseen change because one or more of their aspects are insufficient. This 
jeopardises the ability of our natural environment to provide a number of vital well-being benefits 
now and in the future.

The state of nature in Neath Port Talbot is a mixed picture, while the majority of habitats and their 
associated wildlife are under threat and have shown declines over many years, there are still some 
significant assets. With habitat loss, damage and poor management continuing to contribute to the 
nature emergency it has never been more important to take opportunities to deliver positive action, 
to reverse the trend and to improve and recover the nature of Neath Port Talbot.

More frequent extreme weather as a result of climate change causes significant uncertainty for 
residents of NPT during stormy periods. Over 15,000 properties in NPT are at risk of flooding with 
increased individual health and economic impact. In January 2021, Skewen experienced severe 
flooding as a result of Storm Christoph. Ensuring provisions are in place to reduce the impact of 
flooding is vital for a large number of NPT communities.

Climate change predictions suggest increases in sea level of between 0.2 and 1 metre along South 
Wales’s coastline. Coastal erosion is a natural process, and while seafront developments are protected 
by coastal defences, we need also to consider how communities can adapt to coastal changes.

Freshwater ecosystems are rich in biodiversity, and also provide important ecosystem services, 
including the provision of water resources and flood control. In 2021, only 31% (of 29) of water bodies 
(wholly or partly) in NPT were graded as at Good Ecological Status, as compared to 36% in 2018. 
Additionally, the bathing water at Aberafan’s classification status downgraded from ‘good’ in 2015 to 
‘sufficient’ now.

Tudalen18



9

Soil biota and organic matter has been decreasing in Wales, which has led to reduce quality and 
function. NPT has significant quantity of peat habitats and is a key consideration in NPT as it is 
important for carbon-sequestering and supports the mitigation of climate change.. As part of a 25-
year plan, extensive work will be undertaken to restore these habitats. 

A changing climate will likely impact on the condition and distribution of habitats and species, and 
degraded habitats contribute to climate change. However, by putting nature into recovery we can also 
tackle climate change. Thriving habitats can safely lock up vast amounts of carbon, while providing 
other vital benefits that help us adapt to our future climate, such as flood prevention, clean water and 
improved health and wellbeing.

A HEALTHIER WALES

A society in which people’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and in which 
choices and behaviours that benefit future health are understood.

The overall population in NPT is set to increase by 2.8% by 2028 taking resident numbers to 146,840 
with a disproportionate increase in those aged 65+ (increase of circa 7,000). The resident population 
aged 75+ is projected to increase by 50% from 13,500 to 20,100 between 2018 and 2033. The largest 
increase in the older adult population is projected to be in the Neath and Port Talbot areas, and to a 
lesser extent in the Pontardawe area. 

The increase in life expectancy and morbidity is set to place increased pressure on public services 
which is likely to be offset by increases in employment across the sector. Increasing life expectancy 
and positive mental and physical health are crucial for living well with a high quality of life. Positively, 
residents of NPT were ranked in the top five local authorities in Wales for their mental well-being. On 
the other hand, loneliness is on the increase due to an increasing number of single person households 
expounded by social isolation measures implemented during the COVD-19 pandemic. In NPT 14.2% 
of residents experience loneliness compared to a national average of 15.5%. Given the increase 
in the aging population and the number of single person households, social isolation remains a 
major concern for public health. With the emphasis placed on community cohesion in the Let’s Talk 
responses, it is likely that supportive communities have helped to offset the impact of loneliness in 
NPT. Conversely, inadequate physical connectivity within and between communities can exacerbate 
loneliness.

Tudalen19



10

Two thirds of adults in NPT (66%) are overweight or obese; 6% higher than the national average.  
Efforts to decrease obesity levels are not being supported by the obesogenic environment (an 
environment that helps increase obesity levels). For example, NPT has above the national average of 
fast-food outlets per 100,000 people (104.86 vs 100.65, respectively). One behaviour to offset excess 
calorie intake is physical activity. There are some of the lowest physical activity levels within Wales 
in this area, with NPT being in the bottom five local authorities for the percentage of adults meeting 
the Chief Medical Officers’ guidelines. The message from the guidelines of “any activity is better than 
none, and more is better still” is important to communicate, particularly as there is a vast amount of 
evidence showing the positive mental and physical health benefits of participating in physical activity. 
It is important that the infrastructure is in place to enable physical activity, promote mental well-
being, community cohesion, social climate and connectivity. 

Of relevance here is that NPT has a sizeable proportion of natural assets: 40% of the area is covered 
in woodland. During the pandemic, the value of greenspace should not be underestimated, with 
well placed, quality facilities and services (e.g. public toilets, shops, cafés) augmenting well-being, 
footfall and economic activity. Further “active transport” (walking and cycling) increased during 
the pandemic, not only reducing car travel and carbon emissions but also improving the public 
perception of safety outside. The importance of Greenspaces and Green Infrastructure is gaining 
wider recognition outside of the environment sector, largely due to the COVID-19 pandemic, and work 
is underway to promote greater provision of such in NPT. 

Air Quality is the leading cause of the environmental burden of disease and has been described by 
Public Health Wales as an urgent public health crisis, second only to smoking. Long term exposure 
to air pollution can lead to serious symptoms and conditions affecting human health. It is estimated 
that air pollution contributes to 2,000 deaths a year in Wales (6% of total deaths) and 30,000-40,000 
across the UK (6-7%). While there has been significant improvement in air quality across NPT, it still 
remains an area of concern. The Welsh Government’s the Clean Air Plan for Wales sets out a plan for 
improving air quality and reducing its impacts on human health. Tackling air quality in NPT is a key 
priority in order to protect the health and well-being of current and future generations.

Other health related behaviours such as smoking, substance misuse, alcohol, and diet have also 
shown some encouraging trends. Smoking prevalence of 17% is nationally representative but NPT has 
seen one of the largest decreases in smoking behaviour, reducing from 26 to 17% between 2016 and 
2021, with similar reductions in excess alcohol consumption which has decreased from 21 to 16% over 
the same time period. On the other hand, hospitalisations as a result of alcohol are slightly higher 
than the national average. Eight out of 10 residents who were seeking help for substance misuse 
were aged between 31 and 65 with twice as many men than women accessing support services. 
Thirteen percent of “Let’s Talk” respondents reported that they wanted extra support for drug and 
alcohol services. Finaly, only 1 in 6 adults in NPT consumes 5 portions of fruit and vegetables per day, 
indicating some of the least healthy diets in Wales.

Tudalen20



11

There is a need to increase affordable housing in the NPT locality with 1,037 new homes required by 
2033 in all areas except the Afan Valley. Encouragingly, 434 new units were built between 2018 and 
2021. At the opposite end, the aging population is also having an effect on household size that will 
have decreased from 2.5 to 2.2 persons between 1991 and 2033.

A MORE EQUAL WALES

A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their background or 
circumstances (including their socio economic background and circumstances).

Deprivation is a deep-rooted issue in NPT. The Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) 2019 
highlighted that over two thirds of areas (69.2%) in NPT had higher than average deprivation whereas 
a third of areas were in the most deprived quintile (20%). The WIMD suggests that while NPT has 
a wide range of deprived residents, there are concentrated areas in the most deprived category. In 
2021, around 4.5% (4,000 adults) of NPT residents claimed Universal Credit. The impact of deprivation 
is likely to worsen over the coming years as levels of poverty increase (e.g. food and fuel), affecting 
the lowest income families. 

While life expectancy has seen a small increase in NPT, with males living to an average age of 77.1 
years, still the second lowest in Wales. Life expectancy for women in NPT was four years longer 
than males at 81.3 years. Significantly, women’s life expectancy in NPT was closer to the national 
average and ranked more favourably against other local authorities compared to men. However, 
there is a need to consider this increased longevity in the context of quality of life; the Older People’s 
Commissioner for Wales’ State of the Nation report (2021) identifies that for men and women, 
respectively, there is a gap of approximately 17 and 20 years between life expectancy and healthy life 
expectancy. These 17-20 years of chronic morbidity is set to increase in an aging population and place 
increasing pressure on public and third sector services. This underscores the need to promote well-
being in NPT through all of public sector activity and particularly in families and the early years.

Tudalen21



12

The impact of living in deprived conditions as a child has implications for children’s health and now 
and in subsequent generations. In Wales, Welsh Government adopted the flagship policy “Article 32” 
United Nations Children’s Rights of the Child and consequently provided a commitment to children 
and their rights and their access to play.  There has been an increase in the percentage of children 
living in poverty between 2018 and 2020 which provides significant cause of concern (2018-2019: 
27.8%; 2019/2020: 30.5%). A “good start in life” is essential, thus action is needed to revert the trend 
in NPT. 

Environmental inequalities intersect socio-economic and spatial inequalities, and this burden is 
borne primarily by socially and/or spatially disadvantaged and/or vulnerable populations. Those 
most vulnerable in society, or in vulnerable situations, such as the elderly, those living in poverty, the 
unemployed, those at risk of flood, areas of poor air quality, or high levels of environmental noise are 
at higher risk of increasing health burdens and lower levels of health life expectancy due to known 
and avoidable environmental risk. Increasing climate risks will affect all of Wales, but some people and 
areas are especially vulnerable to change with a risk of exacerbating inequalities. Climate change and 
extreme weather can exacerbate health and wellbeing inequalities. There is also a risk that responses 
to climate change can place disproportionate burdens on people and communities who are 
already vulnerable.

A WALES OF COHESIVE COMMUNITIES

Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities.

A number of respondents from the “Let’s Talk” survey and focus groups emphasised the limitations 
of public transport, particularly noting the lack of an inter-valley rail link. In the digital space, nearly 
all properties (98%) have access to superfast broadband with increasing connectivity and use by older 
age groups particularly those 75 years and above. Nevertheless, there is further work to be done on 
digital infrastructure to support the regeneration of towns and to minimise digital poverty. 

Community and neighbourhood safety is key to the development and sustainability of thriving 
communities. Encouragingly, NPT has had a 44% reduction in road traffic accidents between 2019 and 
2020, continuing a positive annual trend in improved road safety since 2015. The substantial reduction 
between 2019 and 2020 will have been a little skewed by the COVID-19 pandemic. On the other hand, 
there has been a worrying increase in road accidents that involves cyclists suggesting that attention 
should be paid to this aspect of transport, particularly with the emergence of e-bikes. Moreover 22% 
of all road traffic accidents involve active travellers, either on foot (12%) or bike (10%). With increases 
in fuel prices and a move to an active travel infrastructure this issue requires careful consideration.

Tudalen22



13

As stated, access to greenspace remains an issue in NPT despite significant assets. In particular, urban 
areas have limited access to nature and increased exposure to air and noise pollution, alongside 
increasing anxiety and stress levels and lowering levels of social cohesion. Increasing access to green 
and blue spaces and providing community facilities to bring people together is highlighted as a ‘best 
buy’ to prevent mental ill health and improve mental well-being by Public Health Wales. Further, the 
COVID-19 pandemic has increased the public’s awareness of their surroundings, with the local natural 
environment highlighted as a key community asset. The Let’s Talk results emphasised the need to 
safeguard the local area and its current natural environmental assets. 

In the “Let’s Talk” data, NPT residents felt that NPT was a good place to live and has much to offer in 
terms of infrastructure and culture. However, hate crimes, particularly against minority and vulnerable 
sections of the population and cyber-crimes have shown a worrying increase, with violence the 
most prevalent behaviour. On a positive note, antisocial behaviour and crimes against women have 
decreased over the past 5 years.

A WALES OF VIBRANT CULTURE AND THRIVING WELSH COMMUNITIES

A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the Welsh language, and 
which encourages people to participate in the arts, and sports and recreation.

Through the “Let’s Talk” campaign, it was clear that the local environment, the Welsh language and 
heritage and local culture mattered to NPT residents. Specifically, they requested that cultural activity 
should focus on 5 main areas:

	z Keep the past alive, promoting and celebrating heritage to strengthen identity and sense of 
belonging;

	z Help to protect, preserve and maintain historic and heritage sites for present and future 
generations;

	z Promote the Welsh language, traditions and culture;
	z Help all generations to connect with the natural environment, heritage and culture; and 
	z Assist community and voluntary groups to sustain and further develop their important work. 

Tudalen23



14

Over 20,000 residents of NPT speak Welsh: 15.3% of the county’s population. Five of eight of the 
community areas in NPT exceed this value, with the dominant use of the language in Upper Swansea 
and Amman Valleys. It is unclear if the same methods were used to derive this statistic, however, the 
national average of Welsh speakers was nearly double at 28.5%. Exploring the individual components 
of Welsh use, in NPT (compared to Wales), 18% aged 3 or older could read Welsh (25.9%), 15.7% 
could write in Welsh (23.8%) and 26.0% could understand spoken Welsh (33.7%). There is a need to 
consider how environments are developed in an inclusive way that promotes the Welsh language. 

Natural and cultural heritage are inextricably woven. The landscape and environment around NPT 
shape and form cultural identity and ownership. There is a significant industrial heritage including 
many historic buildings and sites of significant scientific and historic interest. NPT has produced 
many world-famous actors, actresses, musicians and artists. In 2019, two thirds of people living in 
NPT reported participating in arts, culture or heritage activities at least three times a year; this is 
just below the Wales average of 71%. Moreover, there is significant voluntary activity that helps 
sustain arts and culture in NPT. But most habitats are under threat, including SSSIs (or sites of special 
scientific interest) that are in an unfavourable condition. The key pressures are from lack of, or poor, 
management and fragmentation or loss of connectivity between habitats. The situation we face is 
not something that can be resolved from within the environmental sector. Transformative changes in 
our economic and social systems are needed, recognising the interconnectivity and feedback loops 
between these systems.

Sport forms a large part of the culture and heritage in NPT. The rugby and football clubs continue 
to thrive and as well as being centres of sport they are also important community assets, providing 
venues for celebrations, entertainment and meeting places. The benefits of sport and physical activity 
on physical and mental health were reported in the “Let’s Talk” survey and focus groups. About half 
of children in NPT are hooked on sport and the number of residents wishing to volunteer in sport 
tripled over the pandemic. Shortly, the local authority will take over the running of the four leisure 
centres in NPT with an aim of increasing activity and facility use. NPT hosts additional inclusive sport 
and leisure facilities. These include world class mountain bike trails in the Afan Valley, the adventure 
golf, skate park, aqua splash play pool and the adventure playground on Aberavon seafront, horse 
riding opportunities in the Amman Valley and a range of walking trails through woodlands, parks 
and alongside canals. The sea front in Aberafan also hosts a range of aquatic activities, including 
surfing and open water swimming. There are many facilities, green and blue spaces and play spaces 
in NPT, providing an infrastructure supportive of well-being and healthy behaviours. From a cultural 
perspective, NPT provides residence for around 5% of its population who are from black and minority 
ethnic groups. These groups add depth and cultural diversity to the area where 59 languages are 
spoken.

The Welsh language, arts, the natural environment, sport and heritage are all important elements of 
identity reported by respondents to the “Let’s Talk” campaign. Importantly, the COVID-19 pandemic 
has magnified the lens on these assets and activities providing the foundation stones for bringing 
communities to come together in a sporting and cultural revival.

Tudalen24



15

A GLOBALLY RESPONSIBLE WALES

A nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, social, environmental 
and cultural well-being of Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing may make 
a positive contribution to global well-being.

People living in Wales use 2.5 planets worth of resources the target being 1. NPT is a major carbon 
contributor in Wales due to its high level of industry but also generates a high level of renewable 
energy. NPT has a gha (global hectares) of 3.2 per capita, compared to Wales’ average of 3.28. With a 
world-average biocapacity of 1.63 gha per person NPT far exceeds what the planet can sustain. NPT 
is making significant efforts to reduce its carbon impact on planetary health which is highly important 
for its residents and its global impact.

According to the Global Risks Report, the health of the planet dominates concerns, with 
environmental risks perceived to be the five most critical long-term threats to the world as well as the 
most potentially damaging to residents of NPT. The top three ranked most severe risks are “climate 
action failure”, “extreme weather”, and “biodiversity loss” and are of significant concern to 
NPT residents.

While NPT faces a key risk in achieving net zero by 2050, with the highest carbon intensity of any local 
authority area in the UK, it is also leader in renewable energy generation with the some of the highest 
installed renewable energy capacity in Wales. Plans to restore peatlands using resource generated 
from windfarm mitigation and to further enhance and develop its woodlands, while also protecting 
and increasing its biodiversity stock through the recovery of nature demonstrates ways in which the 
climate and nature emergency can be targeted together. Moreover, efforts made to protect the planet 
and promote a sustainable economy are central to the NPT economic recovery plan. 

From a positive perspective, NPT is the proud home of the Afan Valley cycling centre containing world-
class off-road cycling facilities and the area has also spawned a number of famous artists, musicians 
and actors who have developed a global identity for the people of NPT and in parallel promoted their 
self-esteem.  

Tudalen25

https://www3.weforum.org/docs/WEF_The_Global_Risks_Report_2022.pdf


16

PUBLIC PERCEPTIONS OF CHANGE – “LET’S TALK” RESPONSE 

The internationally administered Global Risks Perception Survey asked the public globally to reflect on 
perceived societal risks, in the short- (2 years) to medium-term (5 years). The survey helped to identify 
societal and environmental concerns such as, “social cohesion erosion”, “livelihood crises” and 
“mental health deterioration.” From a longer-term perspective (10-years), perceived environmental 
risks such as “climate action failure”, “extreme weather”, and “biodiversity loss” were ranked most 
important.  “Let’s Talk” data also helps place context to the “Foresight and Futures” exercises outlined 
in the Future Trends report from Welsh Government (December 2021). 

NPT residents concurred with findings from the international survey reflecting the global concern and 
constant media attention given to climate change. This is important to recognise, and to consider how 
influence can be exerted locally whilst also acting as globally responsible citizens. In the “Let’s Talk” 
campaign and survey, NPT residents were substantially influenced by the COVID-19 pandemic and 
climate change. A synopsis of “Let’s Talk” responses from both the questionnaire and focus groups is 
presented below. 

“LET’S TALK” THEMES 

Increased community ownership was a major theme, with residents taking on 
volunteering responsibilities to help those who were more vulnerable. Whilst this 
increased community cohesion and spirit, there was also a sense that communities 
had, by necessity, become self-sufficient and were sustained by volunteers, rather than 
local services. The introduction of the Street Champions scheme was felt to have had a 
particularly positive impact. 

“I had a neighbour knocking my door seeing if I wanted prescriptions, I had people asking if I 
needed bread or milk. I sat in my garden and everybody that passed stopped and spoke. It did bring 
back the fact that I was glad I was back in Glyncorrwg” (Afan Valley)

In contrast to the increased involvement of community residents, a second major theme was the 
withdrawal or inadequacy of external support, including day services for older adults, social provision 
for adults with learning difficulties, and youth centres. These changes contributed to the increased 
social isolation and loneliness that was a consistent theme not just affecting the vulnerable within 
the community, but also children who were unable to attend school during enforced school closures. 
Importantly, some respondents noted that social isolation and loneliness were high within the 
community before the COVID-19 pandemic, with the pandemic exacerbating the issue.

Tudalen26

https://www3.weforum.org/docs/WEF_The_Global_Risks_Report_2022.pdf


17

“I used to run a youth club in Briton Ferry, which is quite a deprived area. You’ve got a Gypsy 
community there, a Travelling community, etc. and they used to come to that a lot to that youth 
club and obviously that came to an end. It hasn’t started back... so it would’ve had a negative 
impact on children” (Dulais Valley)

“There isn’t somewhere like ‘Mind’ in the Valleys, so you have to go to the doctors to get 
antidepressants” (Afan Valley)

“It’s divided the haves and have nots. It’s divided the people who were isolated and those who were 
able to get support” (Amman Valley)

Mental health issues were exacerbated by a combination of these factors. Residents discussed the 
detrimental impact of their lack of access to specialist support services they needed, and the anxiety 
experienced by children about contracting COVID-19 at school and infecting their family members. 
In addition to increased anxiety and isolation experienced by school-aged children, questionnaire 
responses identified only a negative impact of the pandemic on young people, as reported by this 
age group. 

“I think a lot of the health services, and especially the mental health services, have sort of stood 
back a little bit because of the COVID... and there’s lots of people suffering as a result of that. I think 
that has to stop now. It has to be improved and people have to be helped” (Dulais Valley)

“I know with my one, I had to take ten weeks off work because she was feeling so anxious because 
her routine, her friends, everything was just changed” (Neath Valley)

Potentially related to this, with schools and youth centres closed, and mental health issues 
exacerbated in young people, a notable increase in antisocial behaviour such as drug taking and 
drinking in recreation areas was discussed consistently in responses. 

“Children and young adults, there’s been a great increase in gatherings of people smoking, taking 
drugs in the area, also drinking. And you’re talking 12/13-year-olds with both drink and drugs in the 
area. I think it’s an issue of they haven’t been able to spend the money elsewhere like they used to, 
so they see it as ‘we’ve got money, let’s go do the alternative’” (Dulais Valley)

The economic and financial impact at both a community and an individual level, was the final negative 
theme that was evident. The local economy was struggling as shops and businesses had been forced 
to close during lockdowns, and some individuals had either lost their job, were financially worse off, 
or anxious about their finance and employment in the future. 

Tudalen27



18

In contrast to this, residents appreciated the blended approach to work that many were experiencing, 
valuing more time with their family and the improved work-life balance and time to reflect and make 
decisions that this allowed.

“I think it’s given us a bit more flexibility in regards to work/life. Meeting on Zoom, a lot of 
people working from home. I found that easier with regards to the children... It doesn’t work for 
everybody, and there should be an option for people to go into a physical building if they want to, 
but I know a lot of mums who’ve found that aspect easier going forward, especially with school 
runs...” (Dulais Valley)

Figure 1 illustrates the key aspects that contributed positively (green) and negatively (blue) during the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 

CLOSURE AND INADEQUACY OF
DAY AND SOCIAL SERVICES

CHANGES EXPERIENCED

IMPACTS ON 
YOUNG PEOPLE

INCREASED ANTISOCIAL 
BEHAVIOUR

ECONOMIC AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT

EXACERBATED MENTAL 
HEALTH ISSUES

INCREASED SOCIAL 
ISOLATION

SCHOOL CLOSURES

IMPROVED WORK-LIFE 
BALANCE

INCREASED COMMUNITY 
OWNERSHIP

INTRODUCTION OF 
STREET CHAMPIONS

Tudalen28



19

PUBLIC PERCEPTIONS OF PRIORITIES GOING FORWARD
- “LET’S TALK” RESPONSE

The tone, volume and emphasis placed on the main future priorities that residents discussed, suggest 
that these are hugely important to them, as they appear to have consequences for overall quality of 
life for all groups of residents by impacting on work opportunities, health, community ownership, 
social integration, and community sustainability. Figure 2 is intended to illustrate where potential and 
discussed interactions and interrelations are evident between the themes.  

Figure 2 Community residents’ future priorities and interrelationships between them 

IMPROVE COMMUNITY 
INFRASCTRUCTURE

COUNCIL AND COMMUNITY
WORKING AS PARTNERS

FINANCIEL SUPPORT FOR 
THE COMMUNITY

IMPROVE SOCIAL AND 
HEALTH CARE

FUTURE PRIORITIES

FRIENDS AND FAMILY

IMPROVE SERVICE 
FOR YOUNG PEOPLE

REDUCE FOR 
ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

IMPROVE AND PROTECT 
THE COMMUNITY 

ENVIRONMENT

Many comments focused on the need for an improved community infrastructure, first and foremost, 
better transport links that are reliable, adequate to meet travel needs, and affordable. The importance 
of this theme cannot be underestimated, as it impinges on other key themes below; for instance, poor 
transport links prevent children from participating in extracurricular activities and prevent adults from 
following work opportunities that are not local, unless they have access to a car. There was a strong 
view that funding for local amenities should be continued, such as pools, libraries, and all-day facilities 
for all age groups, particularly the vulnerable and older adults. Importantly, people felt that funding 
should be allocated to maintain and continue existing facilities, instead of building new ones.  

“I want transport for our children to do extracurricular activities. If they’re down the comprehensive 
in Port Talbot, I want to make sure they can do after school clubs, sports teams and training after 
school hours. I want them to have exactly the same start as the children all the way down from 
Cwmafan” (Afan Valley)

Tudalen29



20

“They say they want you to go out to work, well where do you work for three hours a day? By the 
time you get your bus ...you can work three hours and then you’ve got to get the last bus home. 
You’re never going to sustain that” (Neath Valley)

“By opening the community centre up. Give it back to the community but give us the funding to 
keep the building maintained and have the money to pay for professional help to come here” (Afan 
Valley)

“Ask people what they want. Don’t just build a new park or hall and assume we wanted or needed 
it” (Neath Valley)

A dominant theme was the need to improve social and healthcare for people in these communities, 
which was exacerbated in the light of increased isolation and loneliness and the increased prevalence 
of mental health difficulties, which was partially attributed to inadequacies in health and social care. 
Residents did not have access to health and social care services they needed, and this impacted 
greatly on the vulnerable and older adults, and those who are denied services because of bureaucratic 
reasons associated with their geographical location. 

“I think there are people hidden away in our communities here who are suffering from social 
exclusion, social isolation, that the communities don’t know about, neighbour perhaps don’t know 
about, and it’s a ticking time bomb” (Amman Valley)

Connected with this theme, a third major priority for the future was improvement in services for 
young people, particularly for those who are disadvantaged. Residents identified a need for greater 
investment, including cheaper outdoor facilities for younger people, and a need for continued funding 
into schools. 

“They need to invest in the infrastructure of these small communities. They need to come down 
here, they need to talk to us, they need to look at what we’ve got, and they need to invest in 
us. Especially our young people... there’s kids out there, I can see kids out my window now with 
nowhere to go. They’ve not got the infrastructure” (Neath Valley)

Particularly in the questionnaire responses, there was an expressed need to increase community 
funding to improve and protect the aesthetic and natural assets of the community, thereby improving 
people’s experiences of living there. Cleaner and well-maintained streets, more litter picking schemes, 
cleaner and patrolled parks, are needed, and, strongly voiced in both sets of data, a reduction in the 
public anti-social behaviour by young people that residents perceived to have increased. Related to 
this, comments from a minority of questionnaire respondents reflected a need to safeguard the local 
environment by preventing overdevelopment, protecting local heritage and prevent flooding.     

Tudalen30



21

“It’s not having the park, it’s just the general outlay and the way that it’s operated. We’ve had dog 
faeces rubbed all over the equipment” (Dulais Valley)

People expressed a need for financial support for the community to help reduce deprivation and 
unemployment, and homelessness. This ranged from not raising already high council tax bills any 
higher to supporting affordable social events to help prevent isolation and mental ill-health.

“Our council tax is the third highest in Wales... and I think we also, up here, have an extra on top 
called the community council precept, which is just a talking shop... I don’t think it’s value for 
money. What do we get for it?” (Amman Valley)

A key theme that underpins the frustrations and priorities of residents identified above is the urgent 
need for improved partnership working between the Council and residents. Many people felt that 
decisions were made without their input, and therefore their real health, care and social needs were 
not considered. They recommended a more collaborative approach, where residents are involved 
in decision making, with a voice for all communities, including those smaller, neglected areas and 
transparency over, and input into, financial decisions. There is a need to build a better relationship 
between the Council and residents, starting with clearer definitions of LAC and Council Officer roles, 
to ensure that these are working optimally and equally in different areas. 

“Just, support would be nice. To actually listen to the needs of the community and the people that 
live in the communities and to act upon them. Not a guess of what people need or do what they call 
a ‘best interest’. Actually listen to the needs of the people and the communities. Each community is 
completely different” (Neath Valley)

Finally, questionnaire responses enabled people to identify what matters most to them and their 
immediate and future priorities. Friends and family were overwhelmingly cited as most important, 
highlighting the importance of placing people at the centre of future decisions. Returning to normal, 
remaining safe, maintaining health and education were key immediate priorities and education, 
economy and environmental issues were identified as key future priorities. Not surprisingly, priorities 
differed between different groups of people: younger people prioritised leisure activities and facilities; 
people aged 50+ prioritised physical and mental health/well-being; council workers prioritised 
work-life balance, and business owners prioritised the economy, improving the locality and local 
environment issues (e.g. recycling).   

Tudalen31



SUMMARY DOCUMENT

W E L L-B E I N G A S S ES S M E N T
N E AT H  P O R T  TA L B O T  P U B L I C  S E R V I C E S  B O A R D

W E L L-B E I N G A S S ES S M E N T

Tudalen32



W E L L-B E I N G P L A N
N E AT H  P O R T  TA L B O T  P U B L I C  S E R V I C E S  B O A R D

Tudalen33



Foreword										          1

Introduction to the Act 								        2

NPT Public Services Board							       3

Background 									         4
	 Reflection on Previous Work							       4	

	 Well-being assessment 							       5

Our Well-being objectives 							       6

What we will do									         7

CONTENTS
N E AT H  P O R T  TA L B O T  P U B L I C  S E R V I C E S  B O A R D

Tudalen34



FOREWORD 

Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board is looking for your views to help us improve 

the well-being of people living in our area. 

The Public Services Board is responsible for creating a well-being plan for 2023-2028.

The plan will build on work already started in 2018 with a partnership of organisations 

striving to make a long-term difference to improve the lives of people in NPT. 

The Public Services Board have undertaken a Well-being Assessment reviewing the 

social, environmental, economic and cultural landscape of NPT and from this we have 

agreed on four well-being objectives to prioritise our work for the next five years. 

1

Cllr Steve Hunt 

Chair of Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board 

Leader of Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council 

Taking into account the Well-being Assessment, future trends and other relevant data 

for Neath Port Talbot and have produced a series of steps we will take to help us achieve 

our objectives. 

We would very much like to hear your views on our current plans and help us improve 

these for Neath Port Talbot.  

	z To ensure all children get the best start in life

	z To ensure all our communities are thriving and sustainable

	z To ensure our local environment, culture and heritage can be enjoyed by 

future generations

	z To ensure there are more secure, green and well paid jobs and that skills 

across the area are improved

These are: 

Tudalen35



2

INTRODUCTION TO THE ACT 

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is about improving the social, 

economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. This means that the 

public bodies listed in the Act must do what they do in a sustainable way. To do this, 

the Act sets out a “sustainable development principle” which is about how the public 

bodies listed in the Act should go about meeting their well-being duty under the Act.

The principle is made up of five ways of working that public bodies are required to take 

into account when applying sustainable development.

OUR GOALS A PROSPEROUS WALES

A RESILIENT WALES

A HEALTHIER WALES

A MORE EQUAL WALES
A WALES OF COHESIVE 
COMMUNITIES

A WALES OF 
VIBRANT CULTURE 
AND THRIVING 
WELSH LANGUAGE

A GLOBALLY 
RESPONSIBLE WALES

These are:  

	z Looking to the long-term so that we do not compromise the ability of future 

generations to meet their own needs. 

	z Taking an integrated approach so that public bodies look at all the well-

being goals in deciding on their well-being objectives. 

	z Involving a diversity of the population in the decisions that affect them. 

	z Working with others in a collaborative way to find shared sustainable 

solutions. 

	z Understanding the root causes of issues to prevent them from occurring. 

The Act sets seven well-being goals. Together they provide a shared vision for the public 

bodies listed in the Act to work towards. The well-being goals must be considered as 

an integrated set of seven to ensure that the relevant links are made in the context of 

improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales.

Tudalen36



3

NPT PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD 

The Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board (PSB) brings together leaders and 

decision makers from public service organisations and the voluntary and community 

sector. The purpose of the PSB is to improve the economic, social, environmental and 

cultural well-being of Neath Port Talbot. By working collaboratively the PSB can get a 

deeper understanding of the issues that matter to residents of NPT and can deliver 

improvements much more effectively and efficiently. You can find out more about the 

PSB here.

STATUTORY PARTNERS

INVITED PARTNERS

Tudalen37

http://www.nptpsb.org.uk/


4

BACKGROUND 

Every five years, each PSB must prepare and publish a plan setting out its objectives and 

the steps it will take to meet them. This is called a Local Well-being Plan.

These are:  

	z Local Well-being Objectives 

	z Steps to help us achieve the objectives

	z Timescales and responsibilities

	z Detail on how we will achieve the steps in accordance with the sustainable 

development principle

Reflection on Previous Work
NPT PSB was first established in 2016 and its first Well- being Plan 2018-23 ‘The Neath Port 

Talbot We Want’ is now coming to fruition. The partnership working undertaken during 

this period has resulted in great benefit as different organisations have been brought 

together with a shared understanding of the local area and its issues. A lot has been 

achieved in this cycle, including extensive mapping work and community engagement. 

Stronger relationships have been formed with the soft benefits of investing together and 

being better prepared to respond collectively to adverse events.

Rather than starting from a blank page the Board is building on the excellent work 

undertaken during its first five years in existence and the strong partner relations formed.  

Tudalen38



5

Well-being assessment 
During 2021/22 the PSB has undertaken an extensive local assessment of well-being.   

The full findings can be viewed here.

During the summer of 2021 Neath Port Talbot Council issued a questionnaire as part of 

an extensive engagement campaign. ‘Let’s Talk’ is an open-ended consultation, acting 

as an opportunity for the public to talk about what matters to them. The purpose of the 

initial questionnaire was to find out about what mattered to people living and working 

in Neath Port Talbot. The feedback was used to develop a recovery plan for the county 

borough. It was agreed that due to the open-ended nature of the questions posed the 

Let’s Talk findings would also be suitable to inform the NPT Well-being Assessment. The 

findings of ‘Let’s Talk’ along with local and national data and information gave us a clear 

picture of well-being in our area highlighting our assets and our challenges.

NPT PSB worked in collaboration with Swansea PSB and commissioned Swansea 

University to produce an over-arching analytical chapter to supplement the findings 

and provide a meaningful picture of what our information means for our communities 

in NPT. Elements of this work form the Summary section of the Assessment and sets out 

the key themes of our findings.  

Due to the joined up approach in developing our assessment, we were able to agree 

to align our well-being objectives with those of NPT Council, in order to progress in an 

efficient way and provide overarching added value as a PSB. 

Since the completion of the Well-being Assessment, the cost of living crisis has escalated 

and is set to impact on all of our work going forward. This along with the impacts of the 

Covid 19 pandemic, Brexit and the Climate and Nature emergencies present us with 

challenging times. We believe that by working more closely together we can maximise 

our resources and impact and are committed to this approach as we move towards 

our new Plan for the area.

Tudalen39

http://nptwellbeing.wales


OUR WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 

6

OUR GOALS A PROSPEROUS WALES

A RESILIENT WALES

A HEALTHIER WALES

A MORE EQUAL WALES
A WALES OF COHESIVE 
COMMUNITIES

A WALES OF 
VIBRANT CULTURE 
AND THRIVING 
WELSH LANGUAGE

A GLOBALLY 
RESPONSIBLE WALES

TO ENSURE ALL 
CHILDREN GET THE 
BEST START IN LIFE

TO ENSURE ALL 
OUR COMMUNITIES 
ARE THRIVING AND 
SUSTAINABLE

TO ENSURE OUR LOCAL 
ENVIRONMENT, 
CULTURE AND 

HERITAGE CAN 
BE ENJOYED 

BY FUTURE 
GENERATIONS

TO ENSURE THERE 
ARE MORE SECURE, 
GREEN AND WELL 
PAID JOBS AND 
THAT SKILLS 
ACROSS THE AREA 
ARE IMPROVED

T
udalen40



7

WHAT WE WILL DO 

WELL-BEING OBJECTIVE 1: ALL CHILDREN HAVE THE BEST START IN LIFE

Context 

When looking at improving general well-being in our area it makes perfect sense to start at the beginning and focus on our future generations.  In our Well-being Assessment 
people felt very strongly about their children’s education and social interaction opportunities, particularly after time missed during lockdown.  We know that a high number of 
children in NPT have Additional Learning Needs.  We also recognise a direct link to poverty and deprivation which minimises opportunity later in life.  By working together to give 
our children the best possible start and support we aim to improve life chances and move towards an increasingly thriving and sustainable NPT.

Steps We will work together to:

Take a co-ordinated approach 
to supporting the mental health 
and well-being of our children 
and young people so they are 
able to flourish and thrive

There is currently a duplication of services for children and young people, we need better co-ordination of these so that all needs can be met. Families need 
to be able to easily access these services and a ‘no wrong door’ approach should be embedded. There needs to be better alignment with ongoing regional 
work in this area. By undertaking earlier joint planning of new work streams we can utilise grant funding more efficiently. There is evidence of emerging well-
being needs in children and young people following the Covid pandemic and a collaborative approach is needed to address this.

Ensure that when our youngest 
children start school they are 
confident and ready to learn

Data indicates that on entry to school, children in NPT have weaker skills than their peers in many other areas and there is a direct link to poverty and 
deprivation.A high number of children in NPT have Speech, Language and Communication needs.  On assessment into school data indicates high numbers 
presenting literacy, language and communication skills below that of chronological age, similarly for personal, social and developmental skills.  We need 
to work together as partners to support transition from Early Years settings into school whilst planning for a new curriculum and meeting our duties under 
the Additional Learning Needs reform. Families must be supported to access funded programmes such as Flying Start and the Childcare offer and play 
opportunities need to be increased in our area for children of all ages. We are now seeing the impact of the pandemic, many of our youngest pupils will not 
have had the experiences to develop key skills and a joined up approach is needed to support these children.

Ensure better alignment of early 
intervention services in order to 
meet the needs of our children, 
young people and their families

We are seeing a significant increase in demand for our early intervention and prevention services and the needs presented are becoming increasingly 
complex.  Services commissioned, such as those that sit under the Families First Grant, were not intended to deal with the level of need being seen and we 
need to ensure that these services sit appropriately between the universal offer and statutory services. There is currently duplication of early intervention 
services across sectors, along with gaps in services for higher level need not accessing statutory services. We need to work together to understand what 
the universal offer is from partners and to review transition and pathways across services. A co-ordinated approach for support for pupils with ALN or 
emerging needs is needed.

Support and advise our school 
leavers to increase access to 
employment, education or 
training

Not all of our children and young people will thrive on a traditional academic pathway. We need to work together as partners and support the development of 
vocational pathways in order to reduce the number of young people leaving school and not entering and staying in further education, training or employment.

Long term Prevention Integration Collaboration Involvement 

By investing in our early years 
we are supporting the long 
term well-being of our area, 
impacting on all our well-
being objectives.

We want to prevent childhood issues 
from escalating and requiring intensive 
support so our children can move 
towards adulthood feeling confident 
and supported.

By supporting our children to have the 
best start in life we are impacting on all 
our well-being objectives and looking 
forward to a thriving and sustainable NPT.

We cannot achieve these steps as 
single agencies. Collaboration is 
key to making a difference in our 
children’s lives.

We are committed to enabling 
our children and young 
people to have a voice. Their 
involvement in our work will be 
essential if we are to make a 
difference.

T
udalen41



8

Context 

Our Well-being Assessment reinforced our knowledge that we have strong close-knit communities in NPT. This was particularly evident during the Covid-19 pandemic when 
communities pulled together and supported each other in crisis. This a strength we want to build on, however, we are also aware that deprivation is a deep-rooted issue in 
NPT and there are concentrated areas in the most deprived category of the Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation. The impact of deprivation is likely to worsen over the coming 
years as levels of poverty increase (e.g. food and fuel), affecting the lowest income families. The UK economy is in crisis. The pandemic had already left a legacy of increased 
inequality and this is now being compounded by increases in the cost of living. There is an urgent need for the PSB to work collaboratively to alleviate the financial hardship and 
consequential impact on wellbeing that is being experienced by a growing number of people across NPT. Communities are already mobilising to help those facing hardship, the 
PSB can support this community action by using its resources and reach into communities to enable people to be aware of the help and support available and how to access it.

Steps We will work together to:

Make sure those who need 
help and support with the cost 
of living know what support is 
available and how to access it

Whilst the overall position has worsened in terms of outcomes, there have been a number of policy initiatives that will benefit some people experiencing 
poverty. This includes: the extension of free school meals for some children of primary school age; the expansion of child care facilities; to name but two. We 
need to ensure people entitled to this support are aware of it and receive it.

Identify gaps in help and support 
and how those gaps could be 
addressed

By working closely with our residents and communities we will be able to identify where anyone is being left behind or unable to get the help they need. We 
will then work together as public services to help address this. 

Revisit the work undertaken 
with the support of the 
Bevan Foundation prior to 
the pandemic and reset the 
strategic objectives and actions 
to address the root causes of 
poverty now

The PSB supported work around addressing poverty in NPT which was initiated by NPT Council and supported by the Bevan Foundation prior to the pandemic. 
This was disrupted before programmes were initiated. As well as responding to the immediate humanitarian emergency, the PSB needs to revisit the earlier 
work and reset the strategic objectives and actions to counteract root causes of poverty based on the position as it is now.

WELL-BEING OBJECTIVE 2: ALL OUR COMMUNITIES WILL BE THRIVING AND SUSTAINABLE

Long term Prevention Integration Collaboration Involvement 

There is a short term crisis and steps 
that can be taken to avoid more people 
experiencing crisis. Longer term the PSB 
needs to become clearer about the 
levers it is able to influence to contribute 
to a structural reduction in poverty 
– this will contain preventative and 
reactive measures.

By working with people and hearing 
from those who provide the front line 
support the PSB will better understand 
the root causes of poverty and then 
be better placed to identify what it can 
influence directly and where it needs to 
influence others to act.

The actions support all four 
wellbeing objectives which have 
been designed to be interrelated.

The steps commit to the widest 
collaboration not just amongst PSB 
organisations, but the community, 
people with lived experience, front line 
workers, the private and third sectors.

Central to these actions 
is a commitment to 
co-production through 
working with people who 
have lived experience and 
those who provide the 
front line services.

T
udalen42



9

Context 

We enjoy a rich and diverse natural and cultural heritage in Neath Port Talbot. This heritage is integral to our sense of belonging and connection to the place – the “Dramatic 
Heart of Wales”. As well as underpinning our mental and physical wellbeing, as was clearly demonstrated through the Covid pandemic, our heritage is an asset which supports 
our local economy, helping to attract inward investment and generating value through voluntary action. At the same time, we know that we face a dual nature and climate 
crisis. Evidence shows that some of this change is now irreversible and if we are to avoid even more extreme temperatures, widespread extinctions and further ecosystem 
decline then urgent and transformative change is needed at the global, international and local level. It is critical that we build a nature positive approach into finding our way 
out of Covid and now the current economic crisis 

Steps We will work together to:

Take collaborative action to 
tackle the climate emergency 
(adaptation and mitigation)

Neath Port Talbot is the largest contributor to CO2 in the UK, skewed by the emissions from the steelworks. It also has the highest capacity for onshore 
renewables in Wales. We are in a position to take collective action as a PSB and could impact on this step by: 

•	 Reducing carbon use to net zero by 2030, working together to share good practice and collaborative approaches to carbon reduction plans and 
actions

•	 Increasing carbon literacy and influencing positive behaviour change
•	 Identifying and mitigating the key risks presented to the people and communities of NPT by climate change, e.g. through nature based solutions - 

urban green infrastructure, carbon sequestration and storage through habitat management, woodland creation and peatland restoration

Encourage engagement 
and participation in cultural 
activities and the celebration 
and preservation of our cultural 
assets

Neath Port Talbot is an area rich in culture and history, with important and diverse built and natural heritage, a strong volunteer network, anda a range 
of community festivals. Despite this, it has a lower than Wales average participation in arts, culture or heritage activities. The new curriculum for Wales 
has four main aims which align with the PSB’s own objectives (Ambitious and capable learners; enterprising and creative; ethical and informed citizens; 
healthy and confident). Some of the ways we could progress this step include: 

•	 Engaging young people through delivery of the new school curriculum, particularly around increasing Welsh citizenship and the concept of global 
citizenship

•	 Recognising and promoting local Welsh place names and their part in reflecting our natural and cultural heritage
•	 Supporting community led action, volunteering and showcasing good examples, e.g. community run libraries, community environmental projects, 

and local history / friends groups who contribute significantly to the preservation and promotion of our historical assets (tangible & intangible) 
throughout the borough

•	 Improve community cohesion and reducing social isolation by investing in the development of cultural resources, reducing barriers to accessing 
these resources and encouraging participation in community action and development

WELL-BEING OBJECTIVE 3: OUR LOCAL ENVIRONMENT, CULTURE AND HERITAGE CAN BE ENJOYED BY FUTURE GENERATIONS

T
udalen43



10

Encourage a regenerative local 
economy where the impacts of 
production and consumption 
are reduced

If we are to secure our future wellbeing then we need transformative change in our Food, Energy and Transport systems and to move to a more 
regenerative economy which safeguards our natural resources. The PSB could play its part in this by: 

•	 Identifying and maximising opportunities for local skills training and employment associated with green recovery in NPT, e.g. scientists, ecologists, 
engineers, countryside and conservation managers, as well as artisanal skills needed for maintenance of heritage assets

•	 Determining our economic “green” recovery path, having equity at the heart of decision making and addressing the nature and climate emergencies 
in tandem

•	 Carrying out a sustainability audit (resource and energy use, waste management) to identify opportunities for synergies, sharing best practice and 
opportunities for using partner sites and assets to develop renewables

•	 Promoting the creation of a sustainable food system, the development of local supply chains and the promotion of local produce 
•	 Supporting the development of a sustainable transport system, with an emphasis on active travel options and striving for equitable access for all
•	 Highlighting links and enabling opportunities to connect production, consumption and healthy eating
 
There is obviously a cross over with the first step under the Economic well-being objective. Further work will be carried out to ensure these are integrated.

Take collaborative action to 
tackle the nature crisis and 
improve the health of our 
ecosystems

Whilst the county has extensive (and, on the face of it a healthy) natural environment, the Wellbeing Assessment highlights that the majority of NPTs rich 
mosaic of habitats and associated wildlife are under threat. We can work together to combat this by: 

•	 Recognising nature as an asset in our decision-making processes (e.g. having regard to the Nature Recovery Action Plan, improving access to and 
management of publicly owned land for biodiversity benefit; influencing policies/allocations in the Revised Local Development Plan  and supporting 
implementation; developing a Green Infrastructure Strategy to highlight opportunities and issues within the county around public access to 
greenspace and opportunities for new and improved spaces, building nature into partner strategies, policies and service delivery)

•	 Enabling greater volunteering opportunities on nature projects by identifying key partners (e.g. NPTCVS) to support the coordination and 
communication between projects and environmental volunteering groups to develop a sustainable source of support for delivery of actions, whilst 
increasing public awareness and skills

•	 Raising the profile of biodiversity and the role that all PSB partners have in tackling the nature crisis
•	 Demonstrating positive action by each of the PSB partners
•	 Ensuring everyone has the required knowledge, skills and behaviours which equip them to be able to support and embed nature-based solutions in 

everyday activities

Long term Prevention Integration Collaboration Involvement 

We need to take and sustain 
action, understanding 
and addressing systemic 
root causes and securing 
transformational change.

By working together we can help 
to prevent and reverse escalation 
of climate change and loss to our 
biodiversity.

It was clear when analysing the 
findings of the assessment that 
our natural environment impacts 
every aspect of our well-being 
and is integral to every one of our 
objectives .

No single partner can effect change 
alone.  We are committed as a Board 
to working together and taking 
equal responsibility to address this 
objective.

Everyone has a part to play in this 
objective. We will involve our  
communities in our workstream 
decisions and support them to help 
maintain and enhance their local area.

T
udalen44

http://nptwellbeing.wales/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/Environment-Neath-Port-Talbot-Wellbeing-Assesment-English.pdf


Context 

The Well-being Assessment provides an interesting insight into NPTs unique economy and its impact on the people that live and work here. Despite an increase in employment 
poverty remains evident in most parts of Neath Port Talbot, and latest statistics show that all wards within the county have at least 15% of its children living in poverty. Following 
the pandemic, household incomes have dropped and there has been an increase in the number of economically inactive individuals who have lost confidence and are finding 
it more difficult to access support. There is an opportunity for partners to work together and maximise the impact of investment in the area and support our workforce to upskill 
looking at sustainable solutions and approaches. The goal of this objective will be to achieve a skilled and well-educated population in an economy that generates wealth 
and provides employment opportunities, allowing people to take advantage of the wealth generated through securing decent work.

Steps We will work together to:

Develop Circular and 
Foundational economies and 
promote local people and 
businesses to spend more 
money in NPT

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic a multi agency Economic Partnership has been established in NPT. This partnership recognises the opportunity to 
work together and develop more progressive and sustainable economies for the area. A Circular Economy is a model of production and consumption, 
which involves sharing, leasing, reusing, repairing, refurbishing and recycling existing materials and products as long as possible. A Circular Economy 
aims to tackle global challenges as climate change and biodiversity loss by eliminating waste and pollution, circulating products and materials, and 
the regeneration of nature. We recognise the link with the third step under WB Objective 3 and will ensure this work is joined up and connected. The 
Foundational Economy is that part of the economy that creates and distributes goods and services consumed by all (regardless of income and status) 
because they support everyday life. There is an opportunity for us as public services to ensure that more of our public spend directly benefits the people 
in our area. The Foundational Economy also provides essential employment and income for many households within our most deprived communities; 
and with wealth generated from these businesses generally staying in the local community it is important that we adopt a collaborative approach to 
supporting the sector.  

Increase the number of 
apprenticeship, traineeship and 
work placement opportunities in 
the local area and support more 
people to access them

Through the Economic Partnership, there is an opportunity to formalise “a coordinated, joined-up approach to delivering skills training to the workforce and 
preparing residents for employment”, i.e. Apprenticeships to support the low-carbon economy, developing work experience opportunities, and increasing 
links between education and business providers, especially in relation to careers advice. 

Support more people to achieve 
the necessary level qualifications 
linked to the skills that local 
employers need now and in the 
future

In general, occupations in NPT remain lower skilled compared to the UK average. There is an opportunity for partners to work together to upskill our 
workforce to meet the long-term demand for jobs in the area, ensuring that people have the opportunity to achieve the appropriate level of qualifications 
needed. 

Ensure local businesses, local 
people and communities have 
maximum benefit from external 
major investment for the area 
both existing and planned

With several potential investments on the horizon for NPT we are committed as partners to working together to support and facilitate these investments 
and ensure that residents and businesses in the local area feel the benefit. This also applies to existing investment in the area that we will continue to 
support and collaborate with as much as possible. There is an opportunity to focus on the progressive procurement of goods and services to support 
business growth and the delivery of local social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing.

11

WELL-BEING OBJECTIVE 4: THERE ARE MORE GREEN, SECURE AND WELL-PAID JOBS AND SKILLS ACROSS THE AREA ARE IMPROVED

T
udalen45



12

Long term Prevention Integration Collaboration Involvement 

We intend to look as far 
ahead as possible ensuring 
we have the right skills for 
future jobs, developing our 
economy in a green and 
sustainable way.

Action is needed to reverse the 
downward trajectory of spiralling 
poverty by exploring the root causes 
and taking collaborative action .

The economy impacts across all 
of our well-being objectives and 
there are explicit links with our 
environment objective in terms 
of work going forward.

This is key to progressing our local economy. 
We are committed to working together as 
partners and also with our private sector 
businesses.

Broad involvement will be needed 
to progress this objective, from 
individuals and communities 
to small businesses and large 
manufacturers whose input will be 
crucial for success.

In our final Plan, to be published in May 2023, we will provide more information around our timescales for this 

work and how we will measure our progress. We plan to develop an evaluation framework for the PSB which 

is centred around involvement, this will help us to know where we are making a difference.

Thank you for taking the time to read our draft Plan, we would love to hear your views.   

Please complete our survey here

T
udalen46

https://wh.snapsurveys.com/s.asp?k=167145126110


W E L L-B E I N G P L A N
N E AT H  P O R T  TA L B O T  P U B L I C  S E R V I C E S  B O A R D

Tudalen47



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag


	Agenda
	4 Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus - Cynllun Llesiant Drafft 2023-2028
	Appendix 1  Summary-Neath-Port-Talbot-Wellbeing-Assesment-2022
	INTRODUCTION
	Summary of considerations for Neath Port Talbot  
	a prosperous wales
	A Resilient Wales
	A Healthier Wales
	A More Equal Wales
	A Wales of Cohesive Communities
	A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Communities
	A Globally Responsible Wales
	Public perceptions of change – “Let’s Talk” response 
	CHANGES EXPERIENCED
	Public perceptions of priorities going forward


	Appendix 2 Draft Wellbeing Plan 20232028
	Foreword

	Introduction to the Act 
	NPT Public Services Board

	Background 


	Reflection on Previous Work
	Well-being assessment 
	Our Well-being objectives 
	What we will do





